Environmental Protection Department and Health Department Launch Run Your Tap Public Service Campaig



SEARCH Advanced Search

# facebook flickr twitter

Home

CUSTOMER SERVICES

Ways to Pay Your Bill

Account Information

Customer Assistance

Water Rates

Property Managers and Trade Professionals

# WATER UTILITIES

**Drinking Water** 

Wastewater

Stormwater

Harbor Water

THE WATERSHED

Watershed Protection

Watershed Recreation

CITYWIDE INITIATIVES

Regulatory Reform

**Environmental Education** 

**Conservation Programs** 

Air Pollution Control

Noise Codes & Complaints

BUSINESSES & PROFESSIONALS

Forms & Permits Doing Business with DEP Asbestos Abatement FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

November 4, 2010

CONTACT:

Farrell Sklerov (DEP) (718) 595-6600 Susan Craig (DOHMH) (212) 788-5290

# Environmental Protection Department and Health Department Launch Run Your Tap Public Service Campaign

# Campaign Helps City Residents Learn About the Best Ways to Reduce the Risks of Lead Exposure from Household Plumbing

Environmental Environmental Protection Commissioner Cas Holloway and Health Commissioner Thomas Farley today launched the *Run Your Tap* campaign, a public service campaign to educate city residents about simple precautions that can reduce potential exposure to lead from internal plumbing systems. While New York City's drinking water in reservoirs and throughout the distribution system is virtually lead-free and of the highest quality, the campaign is in response to elevated lead levels found in tap water of some older homes that are known to have lead in their household plumbing. The City monitors lead levels in these residences and provides notifications to homeowners when elevated levels are found.

"NYC Water is safe and healthy to drink," said Commissioner Holloway. "DEP carefully monitors water quality at the city's 19 upstate reservoirs and at nearly 1,000 sampling stations within the distribution system to determine if any contaminants, such as lead, are present. We conduct 500,000 tests each year, and they show that our water supply is virtually lead free. But some older buildings in the city have lead pipes, or pipes with lead fixtures, which can impact the tap water of private homes by introducing lead into water that has been sitting in the pipes for several hours or more. Reducing the possibility of exposure to lead in drinking water is simple and inexpensive: Run your tap for at least 30 seconds, until the water is noticeably colder, before drinking, cooking or making baby formula."

"Water is the healthiest of all beverages, and we encourage people to drink tap water," said Commissioner Farley. "Still, the plumbing in some buildings can cause lead levels to rise when water sits in the pipes for long periods. The elevations seen in the city's recent tests have been too small to pose clear health threats — lead-based paint is the primary source of exposure in New York City, and we will continue to

## 10-94

#### MORE INFORMATION

NYC Department of Environmental Protection Communications & Intergovernmental Affairs

59-17 Junction Boulevard 19th Floor Flushing, NY 11373

(718) 595 - 6600

#### Environmental Protection Department and Health Department Launch Run Your Tap Public Service Campaig

| Construction, | Demolition & |
|---------------|--------------|
| Abatement     |              |

# ABOUT DEP

#### Inside DEP

#### News

DEP Featured In...

Stories from DEP

Press Releases

Public Notices

Testimony and Public Comments

**Capital Projects** 

Job Opportunities

**Environmental Reviews** 

A to Z Index

Contact Us

focus on it. But the best level of lead exposure is zero, especially for children and pregnant women. So remember to run your tap for half a minute, until it's cold, before drinking or cooking with water from the faucet."

As part of the Federal Safe Drinking Water Act, DEP conducts tap water testing at a sample of homes in New York City known to have lead service lines or lead solder in pipes. The results of this year's sampling show an increase in the number of samples above 15 parts per billion (ppb), the EPA standard for lead in water. This year's test results show that 14% (30 samples) of 222 samples were elevated. Whenever more than 10% of the samples exceed 15 ppb, EPA requires public notification by the water supplier. New York City is not unique in experiencing this. Cities such as Boston, Washington D.C., Providence, and Portland, Oregon have all exceeded the action threshold in the past decade.

DEP is investigating the cause of this increase. Drinking water is rarely the primary cause of lead poisoning, but elevated lead levels in water can increase a person's total lead exposure. Lead in tap water has declined since 1992, when DEP began anti-pipe corrosion water treatments. In addition, as in the rest of the country, childhood lead poisoning continues to decline as lead-paint hazards and other lead sources have been reduced. During the four-month sampling period (June – September 2010) when lead in water levels were slightly elevated, there was a 2.4% decline in the number of young children newly identified with elevated blood lead levels as compared with the same period in 2009.

The campaign highlights simple safety precautions that can significantly reduce lead exposure including:

- Running tap water until it is cold or for at least 30 seconds, until the water is noticeably colder, before drinking, cooking or making baby formula any time a faucet has not been used for several hours; and
- Using cold tap water for drinking, cooking and making baby formula even after the tap has been running.

#### **Health Effects of Lead**

Lead is a common metal found in the environment. In the past, lead has been used in pipes, plumbing fixtures and solder, paints, gasoline and other products. Lead may be found in air, water and soil from past uses of these products. Lead poisoning is a preventable health problem and young children are at greatest risk. Lead poisoning may cause learning and behavior problems as well as delays in growth and development in children. In New York City and across the country, peeling lead paint in homes is the primary cause of lead poisoning. Landlords must inspect and safely repair peeling paint if a young child lives at a residence. If a landlord doesn't fix peeling paint, call 311. Children may also be exposed to lead from other sources including, imported consumer products, soil, and water.

Blood lead levels in children have been dropping precipitously over the past several years. Since 1995, there has been a 93% drop in the number of children with elevated blood lead levels from 19,232 cases in 1995 to 1,387 cases in 2009.

# How Lead Enters Drinking Water

New York City's drinking water is virtually lead free in the upstate reservoirs and throughout the distribution system.

However, lead can enter tap water from solder, fixtures and pipes in the plumbing of some older buildings and homes. When water "sits" for several hours in lead service lines or pipes containing lead, some lead can be released into the water. As a result, the water first drawn from the tap in the morning, or later in the afternoon after returning from work or school, may contain high levels of lead. Regulations have been put in place to reduce the lead in plumbing, yet individual residences may still contain plumbing and fixtures with lead content if they were installed before these rules came into effect.

#### How the City is Reducing the Risks of Lead in Water

DEP maintains an active program to reduce the quantity of lead that dissolves into water, especially in private homes with lead or lead soldering in pipes. DEP carefully and continuously monitors and adjusts pH levels of water to a specific range that reduces the corrosiveness of the water and adds phosphoric acid — a common food preservative to create a protective film on pipes that reduces the release of metals, such as lead, from household plumbing.

# Protective Steps New Yorkers Can Take To Reduce the Risk of Exposure

# Run Your Tap

The simplest way to reduce the potential of exposure to lead is to let the water run from your tap to flush out any lead before using it for drinking, cooking or making baby formula any time the water in a faucet has stood several hours. Running the tap means running the cold water faucet for at least 30 seconds, until the water gets noticeably colder.

Running tap water is a simple and inexpensive measure you can take to protect your family's health. It usually uses only a few gallons of water and, if done consistently, would cost roughly \$1 per month. To help reduce these costs, you can also fill a couple of bottles for drinking water after running the tap the first time. Another way to conserve water is to use the first run of water for plants, household cleaning or for other purposes that do not involve cooking and drinking.

#### Use Cold Water for Cooking

Always use cold water for cooking, drinking and making baby formula. Do not cook with or drink hot tap water, even if you boil it, because boiling does not reduce lead levels. Hot water can dissolve lead more quickly than cold water and your hot water heater may contribute more lead to your faucet. If you need to cook with hot water, draw cold tap water before heating it on the stove. Never use hot tap water to make infant formula or infant cereal.

In the event that someone is still concerned after following these safety precautions, call 311 to request a free lead testing kit from DEP.

### To Learn More About the Health Effects of Lead

- Call 311 to request information from the NYC Health Department about the health effects of lead, causes of lead poisoning and how to have a child's blood tested for lead poisoning.
- Consult a health care provider to make sure children are tested for lead poisoning at ages 1 and 2 as required by New York State law. Also, talk to a provider about testing older children and pregnant women if they are at risk of

lead exposure.

#### About DEP

DEP manages the city's water supply, providing more than 1 billion gallons of water each day to more than 9 million residents, including 8 million in New York City. New York City's water is delivered from a watershed that extends more than 125 miles from the city, and comprises 19 reservoirs, and three controlled lakes. Approximately 7,000 miles of water mains, tunnels and aqueducts bring water to homes and businesses throughout the five boroughs and DEP performs rigorous and comprehensive monitoring every day, to ensure that we continue to deliver the healthy, great tasting water that New Yorkers expect. DEP monitors its drinking water for approximately 250 contaminants, approximately 100 of which are not currently required by regulators. DEP performs more than 900 tests daily, 27,000 monthly, and 330,000 on an annual basis from up to 1,000 sampling locations throughout New York City. This work is in addition to 230,000 tests performed in the watershed. For more information, visit www.nyc.gov/dep or follow us on Facebook at www.facebook.com/nycwater.

#### **About Health**

The New York City Health Department's Lead Poisoning Prevention Program promotes public and private action to reduce children's exposure to lead hazards in the environment. The program works to ensure that children are routinely screened for lead poisoning. It also provides services for lead-poisoned children and pregnant women, as well as their families and health care providers. To learn more about how to prevent lead poisoning, call 311 or visit www.nyc.gov/health.

- View all press releases
- Sign up to receive DEP press releases by email

Copyright 2011 The City of New York

Contact Us | FAQs | Privacy Statement | Terms of Use | Site Map